
 

                        

           Date: 14.04.2021 

 
Bid Bulletin No 1 

Supply and delivery of portable x-ray machines 
IFB No.:  IFB 2021.MED.02.XR 

  
Question 1: 
In regard to Tender Ref No:  IFB No: 2021/MED/02/XR, regarding X-Ray mobile we are register with 
UNGM the qty is 83.  Due to current situation of freight etc.  Would be allow partial delivery?  
 
 
Answer 1: 
The partial delivery is accepted. The successful Bidder is expected to complete the delivery by the 
Intended Completion Date which is 45 calendar days after signature of Contract as per clause 1.2 of the 
bidding documents. 
 
Question 2: 
The bid prepared by the Bidder, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the bid 
exchanged by the Bidder and IOM shall be written in English language. Supporting documents and 
printed literature furnished by the Bidder may be in Greek or in another language provided they are 
accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the required language, in which 
cases, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid the translation shall govern. »  
Any related to the bid correspondence and documents shall be written in English but the supporting 
documents and printed literature furnished by the Bidder may be in Greek or in another language as 
far as it is accompanied by accurate translation. Does it mean that the company`s legal documents 
which have been issued by Greek Authorities (and therefore are issued in Greek language) should also 
have an accurate translation in English language?   

Answer 2: 
All IOM forms prepared shall be submitted in English. Any other supporting documentation which is 
requested by the bidding documents will be deemed to be accepted also in Greek. 
 
Question 3: 
Will IOM accept bids for a smaller quantity of the announced item (e.g. a bid for fifty (50) Portable X-
Ray Machines instead of the total quantity of eighty three (83)? 

Answer 3: 



Interested bidders should submit quotation for the total required quantity as per tender requirements 
and for all required items as per revised Bidding Documents “(Revision 1) Bidding Documents - Portable 
x-ray machines 2021.MED.02.XR” and in accordance with the Addendum No.1.  

Question 4: 
Θα ήθελα να με ενημερώσετε για τον διαγωνισμό που διενεργείτε από τον Οργανισμό σας για την 
προμήθεια 83 φορητών ακτινολογικών μηχανήματων, αν η διακήρυξη υπάρχει και στα ελληνικά, αν 
μπορείτε να μας την στείλετε με ένα e-mail ή αν βρίσκεται κάπου αναρτημένη για να την 
κατεβάσουμε. 

Answer 4: 
The tender documentation provided is only available in the English language.   
 
Question 5: 
1. Can you accept the Eligibility and Qualification documents which are requested in the IFB (as the 
below for example a, b, c, d certificates and others) in Greek language ?  

a. Company's Articles of Incorporation, Partnership or Corporation, whichever is applicable, including 
amendments thereto, if any. 

b. Certificate of Registration from government agency/department/ministry 

c. Tax & Social Security certificate clearance valid at the time of bid submission  

d. Audited Financial Statements for the last 3 years 

2. Can you please inform us for the tenders budget if available? 

3. Do you accept partial delivery? Or can you extend the delivery time? 

Answer 5: 
1. All IOM forms prepared shall be submitted in English. Any other supporting documentation which is 
requested by the bidding documents will be deemed to be accepted also in Greek. 
 
2. The project budget cannot be disclosed to interested bidders. 
 
3. The partial delivery is accepted. The successful Bidder is expected to complete the delivery by the 
Intended Completion Date which is 45 calendar days after signature of Contract as per clause 1.2 of the 
bidding documents. 
 
Question 6: 
One of the requirements is to deliver the units within 45 days of the contract sign.  
On the other hand,  in addition to the bid price quoted, the factor of delivery schedule will be evaluated, 
according to §27.4a  
Given that the tender requires one type of equipment (Mobile XRay unit) what does the delivery 
schedule stands for?  
Does this allow us to deliver in evenly partially deliveries? E.g. one delivery every 30 days up to 6 months 
of contract sign? 
 
 
 



Answer 6: 
The partial delivery is accepted. The successful Bidder is expected to complete the delivery by the 
Intended Completion Date which is 45 calendar days after signature of Contract as per clause 1.2 of the 
bidding documents.  
 
Question 7: 
In clause 18, please clarify whether you need six different envelopes or just three envelopes containing 
two copies of the various documents each. 
 

Answer 7: 
As stated in clause 18.1 of the bidding documents the Bid should be consisted by six different set of 
documents which will be placed in separate envelopes. The sets of documents will be divided to the 
documents, as stated in clause 18.1: Bidder’s Eligibility and Qualification (Original and Copy); Technical 
Conformity and Specifications (Original and Copy); and Bid/Financial Proposal (Original and Copy), 
therefore in total six different set of documents. 
 
Question 8: 
Please provide information about destination countries and hospitals to which the equipment in 
question shall be installed. 
 
Answer 8: 
As per Bidding documents the delivery place is the Warehouse in the region of Attica, Athens Greece. 
The installation will be done at a later stage.  
 
 
Question 9: 
List of all contracts entered into for the last 3 years (indicate whether completed or ongoing). 
Question: Please confirm our understanding that such contracts should concern similar equipment like 
the one under procurement (eg. portable x-ray equipment). 
 
Answer 9: 
As per clause 14.4.j) of the bidding documents interested bidders should submit the list of all contracts 
entered into for the last 3 years (indicate whether completed or ongoing).  
 
Question 10: 
In par. 9.1 (Language of Bid) it is stated “.1 The bid prepared by the Bidder, as well as all correspondence 
and documents relating to the bid exchanged by the Bidder and IOM, shall be written in English 
language. Supporting documents and printed literature furnished by the Bidder may be in Greek or in 
another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages 
in the required language, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, the translation shall 
govern. 
Question: Please clarify whether the following documents can be provided in Greek, given the length 
of such documents and short timeline for tender submission? 
 
Answer 10: 
All IOM forms prepared shall be submitted in English. Any other supporting documentation which is 
requested by the bidding documents will be deemed to be accepted also in Greek. 



 
Question 11: 
In par. 14 it is requested for the bidder to provide “Audited Financial Statements for the last 3 years”. 
Question: Given that the term for publishing (and having audited) the financial statements is until June, 
and thus, the 2020 financial statements are not audited yet, please confirm that it will acceptable for 
bidders to submit audited financial statements for years, 2017, 2018 and 2019. 
 
Answer 11: 
Audited Financial Statements for the last 3 years (2017, 2018 and 2019) will be accepted.  
 
Question 12: 
In par 31.1 (Award Criteria) it is stated: “31.1 IOM will award the contract to the successful Bidder 
whose bid has been determined to be substantially responsive and has been determined to be the 
lowest evaluated bid, provided further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the 
contract satisfactorily.” 
Question: Please clarify whether “substantial responsiveness” means that some deviations from 
technical specifications will be tolerated or that bidders should comply with strictly all technical 
specifications required. Please clarify whether IOM may award the contract to more than one bidders, 
that may offer best price per item? 
 
Answer 12: 
IOM’s evaluation of a bid will take into account, in addition to the bid price quoted in accordance with 
ITB Clause 12.2, one or more of the following factors: 
 
(a) delivery schedule 
(b) local representation and presence of network of services in the Greece 
(c) compliance with the technical specifications; and 
(d) other specific criteria indicated and/or in the Technical Specifications 
 
IOM will award the contract to the successful Bidder whose bid has been determined to be substantially 
responsive and has been determined to be the lowest evaluated bid.  
 
Question 13: 
Please clarify whether partial deliveries of the equipment are accepted. If so, please clarify if part of 
the equipment can be delivered after the term of 45 days. 
 
Answer 13: 
The partial delivery is accepted. The successful Bidder is expected to complete the delivery by the 
Intended Completion Date which is 45 calendar days after signature of Contract as per clause 1.2 of the 
bidding documents. 
 
Question 14: 
Given that payment of Goods shall be due 30 (thirty) calendar days after acceptance by IOM of the 
Goods, please clarify what will be the acceptance procedure? Please also confirm whether acceptance 
it will take place in the delivery place mentioned in the documents, i.e. in the warehouse in the region 
of Attica, Athens Greece? Please confirm that acceptance shall take place at point of delivery (i.e. 
warehouse in the region of Attica), as given the high number of end users/destinations (83), getting the 



acceptance certificate after concluding delivery to all 83 of them shall extend severely the acceptance 
procedure and thus delay significantly the payment of the supplier. 
 
Answer 14: 
The successful Bidder is expected to complete the delivery by the Intended Completion Date which is 
45 calendar days after signature of Contract as per clause 1.2 of the bidding documents. Supplier shall 
invoice IOM upon completion of delivery and payment shall be made within 30 days after receipt of 
the invoice. As per Bidding documents the delivery place is the Warehouse in the region of Attica, 
Athens Greece. The installation will be done at a later stage. 
 
Question 15: 
According to Section I, par 4.1: ……Equipment shall be approved/certified for distribution and usage 
within European Union and/or Greece. 
Please clarify if the equipment (total 83 units) will be installed in Public Hospitals and Hot Spots in 
Greece territory. 
 
Answer 15: 
As per Bidding documents the delivery place is the Warehouse in the region of Attica, Athens Greece. 
The installation will be done at a later stage. 
 
Question 16: 
According to Section I, par 9.1: The bid prepared by the Bidder, as well as all correspondence and 
documents relating to the bid exchanged by the Bidder and IOM, shall be written in English language. 
Supporting documents and printed literature furnished by the Bidder may be in Greek or in another 
language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the 
required language, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, the translation shall govern. 
Please clarify if the legislation documents and certificates issued by Public Greek authorities can be 
submitted in Greek language without translation in English. 
 
Answer 16: 
All IOM forms prepared shall be submitted in English. Any other supporting documentation which is 
requested by the bidding documents will be deemed to be accepted also in Greek. 
 
Question 17: 
According to Section III, par 6. Special Terms: 6.8 Moreover, the manufacturer and the supplier are 
required to have genuine factory spare parts / consumables of the machine at the Hospital, at least for 
the next ten (10) years. 
- Please clarify if the next 10 ten years starts from the final acceptance date. 
- Please clarify if we have to offer for the whole quantity (total 83 units) or we can offer for part of it. 
 
Answer 17: 
-The commencement of the 10 years period is calculated from the date of the completion of the 
delivery. 
-Partial bids will not be accepted.   
 
Question 18: 
(i)Please provide the name, full address, country etc. that the invoice will be issued. 



 
(ii)Please clarify If the invoicing and payment shall become due 30 (thirty) calendar days after 
quantitative acceptance by IOM of the Goods in the Warehouse in the region of Attica. 
 
(iii)According to technical specifications: 6.6 The supplier company, without any other financial burden, 
will undertake to train on the premises where the medical equipment will be operated, once it is fully 
operational. 
According to the contract: Training of IOM’s personnel, at the Supplier’s plant and/or on-site, in 
assembly, startup, operation, maintenance, and/or repair of the supplied Goods. 
Please clarify where the training will take place and who will be the trainees. 
 
(iv)Please provide the full address, country etc. of the IOM that will sign the contract with the awarding 
supplier and the entity addressed at the bid security (bank guarantee). 
 
-(v) According to technical specifications: 6.4 Provide a warranty of good performance for at least two 
(2) years. According to contract: This warranty shall remain valid for 12 (twelve) months after the Goods 
have been delivered to and accepted at the final destination indicated in the Contract. Please clarify 
the requested warranty period. 
 
(vi)Is the attached, on the bidding documents, Code of Conduct for suppliers the one to be 
acknowledged by suppliers for this specific tender? Does the United Nations Code of Conduct for 
Suppliers would be acceptable to be acknowledged by the suppliers instead of IOM CoC? 
 
 
Answer 18: 
(i) Invoicing information will be provided after the award of the tender. 
(ii) Supplier shall invoice IOM upon delivery of the goods and payment shall be made within the stated 
period after receipt of the invoice. 
(iii) This is a template for your reference only. You are not requested to submit it. In the event of 
receiving an Award, the agreement will be drafted over this specific template. 
(iv) This is a template for your reference only. You are not requested to submit it. In the event of 
receiving an Award, the agreement will be drafted over this specific template. 
(v) This warranty shall remain valid for 12 (twelve) months after the Goods have been delivered to and 
accepted at the final destination indicated in the Contract. 
(vi) Please use and include all documentations your company requires, to accommodate all necessary 
information is requested at section VIS. 
 
Question 19: 
Please also clarify the technical specifications 2.5, 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 4.2, 4.3, 4.5, 4.9, 4.10, 4.11, 5.1, 5.3, 5.5 
and if the supply of the 83 portable X-ray machines will be awarded to one supplier or the order is 
possible to be awarded to more than one supplier. 
 
Answer 19: 
You are kindly requested to take into consideration the Addendum No 1 as well as the (Revision 1) 
Bidding Documents - Portable x-ray machines 2021.MED.02.XR before submitting your quotation. 
Hence the revised Section III. Technical Specifications should be submitted with your quotation. In 



order to allow prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in 
preparing their bidders, IOM is extending the deadline for the submission of bids. 
 As per Letter of Invitation (page 3 of the Bidding documents) “Bidding procedure will be conducted 
based on the rules of the International Organization for Migration. IOM reserves the right to select the 
most favorable solution in terms of IOM’s programmatic requirements)” 
 
Question 20: 
Since in the ‘Technical Specifications’ the numbering duplicates in some points, please clarify the valid 
numbering and corresponding technical specifications. 
 
Answer 20: 
You are kindly requested to take into consideration the Addendum No 1 as well as the (Revision 1) 
Bidding Documents - Portable x-ray machines 2021.MED.02.XR before submitting your quotation. 
Hence the revised Section III. Technical Specifications should be submitted with your quotation. In 
order to allow prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in 
preparing their bidders, IOM is extending the deadline for the submission of bids. 
 
Question 21: 
As Manufacturer of mobile X-Ray units I need a clarification, I’ve downloaded the tender specifications 
and I have a doubt, starting form the point 2.5 many point are repeated with the same number but 
with different specifications, how do I know which one to take in consideration? 
 
Answer 21: 
You are kindly requested to take into consideration the Addendum No 1 as well as the (Revision 1) 
Bidding Documents - Portable x-ray machines 2021.MED.02.XR before submitting your quotation. 
Hence the revised Section III. Technical Specifications should be submitted with your quotation. In 
order to allow prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in 
preparing their bidders, IOM is extending the deadline for the submission of bids. 
 
Question 22: 
A. Technical Specifications  
A1. In Section III -Technical Specifications, it is mentioned that :  
 
§1.3 The system can be locked with Dead man brake system  
Alternatively, to the dead man brake, the system is equipped with pedal brakes in order to perform the 
same exactly function.  
Does this conform to your requirements?  
 
§2.1 Modern technology generator, High frequency ≥100kHz with power output kW ≥30kW  
Would it be acceptable instead of High frequency Generator ≥100KHz, a High frequency of 40KHz with 
power output of 32kW without compromising the full clinical use of the system?  
Does this conform to your requirements?  
 
§2.3 The range of mAs ranges from 0.2 mAs to at least 300mAs.  
Would It be acceptable a range of 0.2 mAs up to 220mAs, instead of mAs ranges from 0.2 mAs to at 
least 300mAs?  
A range of 0.2 mAs up to 220mAs does not compromise the full  clinical use of the system.  



On top of this, a high range of mAs (>220mAs) does not comply with the ALARA protocol : As Low (dose) 
As Reasonably Achievable technique.  
Does this conform to your requirements? 
 
Answer 22: 
You are kindly requested to take into consideration the Addendum No 1 as well as the (Revision 1) 
Bidding Documents - Portable x-ray machines 2021.MED.02.XR before submitting your quotation. 
Hence the revised Section III. Technical Specifications should be submitted with your quotation. In 
order to allow prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in 
preparing their bidders, IOM is extending the deadline for the submission of bids. 
 
Question 23: 
In Section III of the tender documentation, we observed the existence of several technical specifications 
with double requirements. Namely, technical specifications: 2.3, 2.5, 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 4.2, 4.3, 4.5, 4.10, 
4.11, 5.1, 5.3, 5.5. Consequently, it is not clear for the potential bidders to understand the requirements 
set and answer to the technical specifications accordingly. Therefore, we kindly request you to clarify 
which ones apply. 
 
Answer 23: 
You are kindly requested to take into consideration the Addendum No 1 as well as the (Revision 1) 
Bidding Documents - Portable x-ray machines 2021.MED.02.XR before submitting your quotation. 
Hence the revised Section III. Technical Specifications should be submitted with your quotation. In 
order to allow prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in 
preparing their bidders, IOM is extending the deadline for the submission of bids. 
 
 
Question 24: 
Please clarify if the technical specification 1.1 can be revised? 
 
Answer 24: 
You are kindly requested to take into consideration the Addendum No 1 as well as the (Revision 1) 
Bidding Documents - Portable x-ray machines 2021.MED.02.XR before submitting your quotation. 
Hence the revised Section III. Technical Specifications should be submitted with your quotation. In 
order to allow prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in 
preparing their bidders, IOM is extending the deadline for the submission of bids. 
 
Question 25: 
Please clarify if technical specification 1.4 can be revised? 
 
Answer 25: 
You are kindly requested to take into consideration the Addendum No 1 as well as the (Revision 1) 
Bidding Documents - Portable x-ray machines 2021.MED.02.XR before submitting your quotation. 
Hence the revised Section III. Technical Specifications should be submitted with your quotation. In 
order to allow prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in 
preparing their bidders, IOM is extending the deadline for the submission of bids. 
 
 



Question 26: 
Would the contracting authority consider the incorporation of AI technology in the requested portable 
X-ray systems. 
 
Answer 26: 
You are kindly requested to take into consideration the Addendum No 1 as well as the (Revision 1) 
Bidding Documents - Portable x-ray machines 2021.MED.02.XR before submitting your quotation. 
Hence the revised Section III. Technical Specifications should be submitted with your quotation. In 
order to allow prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in 
preparing their bidders, IOM is extending the deadline for the submission of bids. 
 
Question 27: 
The technical Specifications for x-ray mobile system, described on Section III, are mandatory or can 
slightly differ? 
 
Answer 27: 
You are kindly requested to take into consideration the Addendum No 1 as well as the (Revision 1) 
Bidding Documents - Portable x-ray machines 2021.MED.02.XR before submitting your quotation. 
Hence the revised Section III. Technical Specifications should be submitted with your quotation. In 
order to allow prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment into account in 
preparing their bidders, IOM is extending the deadline for the submission of bids. 
 
 

 


